
 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Public Services Reform 
Policy and Accountability 

Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Monday 23 March 2020 at 7.00 pm 
Meeting Room 1 (2nd Floor) - 3 Shortlands, Hammersmith, W6 8DA 

 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor Rowan Ree (Chair) 
Councillor Christabel Cooper 
Councillor Guy Vincent 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum 

Councillor Dominic Stanton 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: David Abbott 

Scrutiny Manager 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 Tel: 07776 672877 
 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
Members of the press and public are welcome to attend this meeting. 
 

Agendas are available on the Council’s website www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees 
 

Date Issued: 11 March 2020 

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Public Services Reform Policy and Accountability Committee 

Agenda 
 

23 March 2020 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  4 - 10 

 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting and note any matters 
arising. 
 

 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 To note any apologies for absence or lateness. 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, whether 
or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any other 
significant interest which they consider should be declared in the public 
interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a sensitive interest 
as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature of the interest at the 
commencement of the consideration of that item or as soon as it becomes 
apparent. 
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and speak, 
then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should withdraw from 
the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. Councillors who have 
declared other significant interests should also withdraw from the meeting if 
they consider their continued participation in the matter would not be 
reasonable in the circumstances and may give rise to a perception of a conflict 
of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a dispensation 
to that effect has been obtained from the Standards Committee. 

 

 

4.   CO-PRODUCTION UPDATE REPORT  11 - 16 

 This report sets out the progress being made regarding the 
implementation of Co-Production across the Council following the 
recommendations from the Disabled People’s Commission report.   
 

 

5.   H&F WAY PROGRESS REPORT  17 - 70 

 This report provides information on ‘The H&F Way’, the Council’s 
internal culture change campaign. 
 

 

6.   DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   

 The Committee is scheduled to meet on: 
 16 June 2020 

 2 September 2020 

 16 November 2020 

 26 January 2021 

 22 March 2021 

 

 



 
 

 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Public Services Reform 
Policy and Accountability 

Committee 
Minutes 

 

Wednesday 29 January 2020 
 

 

 
PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Rowan Ree (Chair), Christabel Cooper, 
Zarar Qayyum and Dominic Stanton 
 
Other Councillors 
Councillor Adam Connell, Cabinet Member for Public Services Reform 
 
Officers 
Lisa Redfern (Strategic Director of Public Services Reform) 
Martin Calleja (Assistant Director of Efficiency and Zero-Based Budgeting) 
Dawn Aunger (Assistant Director of People and Talent) 
Matthew Sales (Assistant Director of Programmes and Assurance) 
Andrew Lord (Head of Strategic Planning and Monitoring) 
Andre Mark (Interim Finance Business Partner) 
David Abbott (Scrutiny Manager) 
 
 

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
Updates and Actions 
Dawn Aunger (Assistant Director of People and Talent) noted that there had been 
some confusion at previous meetings over the proportion of staff leaving in their first 
year of employment. She informed the Committee that for 2019/20 there were 76 
members of staff who left in their first year which equated to 18.8 percent of total 
leavers. 
 
Members requested that the following be circulated to the Committee: 

 An analysis of why staff had left. 

 The plan to reduce agency spend (discussed at previous meetings). 
 

ACTIONS: Dawn Aunger 
 
It was noted that an update on agency and overall workforce spend would be 
presented at the March meeting. 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 1



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

It was also noted that the most recent Brexit preparedness update (10) had been 
circulated to the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED 
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as an accurate record. 
 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Guy Vincent. 
 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

4. 2020 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY  
 
Andrew Lord (Head of Strategic Planning and Monitoring) gave a corporate overview 
of the budget, highlighting the following points for context: 

 Savings will have exceeded investment (growth) by £125m from 2009/10 to 
2020/21. 

 General grant funding reduced by £68m from 2010/11 to 2020/21. A 54% real 
terms cut. 

 Government modelling for spending power assumes a 2% Council tax 
increase and 2% adult social care precept levy. For H&F a 2% increase will 
raise £4.8m over 4 years and £1.2m in the first year. 

 The 2019/20 to 2020/21 local government finance settlement included a 
general grant increase of 3.6m but future years still presented significant 
financial challenges. 

 
The Chair opened up to questions on the corporate financial position. 
 
Councillor Christabel Cooper, noting the comment from auditors Grant Thornton 
about the Council’s relatively low levels of reserves, asked if the Council was 
confident it could manage those levels going forward. Andrew Lord said officers were 
mindful of the auditors’ comments and the budget included an addition to reserves to 
address the issue. Officers added that the current level of reserves was sufficient for 
the Council's plans but they were being mindful of the levels. 
 
Councillor Cooper asked if officers expected similar comments on the level of 
reserves from the auditor in future. Andrew Lord said he hoped the Council’s action 
plan for reserves would address the issue – and noted that similar comments had 
been made at many other local authorities given the challenging financial climate. 
 
Councillor Cooper noted there were many unknowns about the Council’s revenue in 
the future (e.g. Central Government grant could be diverted to other areas of the UK) 
and asked if the organisation would withstand a ‘perfect storm’ of financial 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

challenges. Andrew Lord said the Council had built in prudent assumptions to the 
budget and was trying to maintain reserves to help protect against future unknowns. 
 
Councillor Adam Connell (Cabinet Member for Public Services Reform) noted that 
the Council was just below the national average in terms of reserves. A new policy 
had been put in place to top up reserves using new capital receipts. 
 
Councillor Cooper asked what actions could the Council take in the short term if it 
was facing a ‘perfect storm’. Andrew Lord said the near-term financial position was 
somewhat uncertain as the four year local government settlement didn't happen due 
to the general election. He explained that any significant financial change introduced 
by the government would be smoothed to give councils time to prepare, though it 
would be difficult to manage given that demand for services was increasing. 
 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum asked what was meant by ‘one-off use of resources – 
£5.3m’ in table 2 of the report. Andrew Lord explained that there was a one-off 
surplus from council tax income. 
 
Councillor Dominic Stanton, also referring to table 2, noted that the cumulative 
budget gap (£9m in 21/22, £19.9m in 22/23, and £31.5m in 23/24) did not look very 
optimistic. Andrew Lord said that each year the Council as had to find savings of 
around £10-15m. It had been a real challenge but it was expected at this point. 
Councillor Stanton said there must come a point where all of the efficiencies have 
already been made. Added to the low reserves, was the Council getting towards a 
tipping point? Officers replied that the ‘low hanging fruit’ in terms of efficiency 
savings went 8 or 9 years ago. 
 
Councillor Adam Connell noted that the cumulative figures included assumptions 
such as further freezes in council tax that could change. 
 
Councillor Qayyum asked if zero-based budgeting had been taken into account. 
Martin Calleja (Assistant Director of Efficiency and Zero-Based Budgeting) said the 
budget included £9m of savings from the zero-based budgeting programme and 
there was a pipeline of future savings being worked on for future years. 
 
Lisa Redfern (Strategic Director of Public Services Reform) gave a presentation on 
the Public Services Reform budget, highlighting the following points: 

 The department had downsized and reduced the overspend. The department 
was now at 80 staff with a staffing budget of £5m and was proposing savings 
of £0.255m. 

 The only area of some concern was Business Intelligence – it needed a 
sustainable operating and resourcing model. 

 People and Talent had reduced its staff numbers and overspend – and had 
seen significant improvements in the past six months. 

 
Lisa Redfern then talked about the department’s vision and objectives – promoting a 
participatory culture, finding radical solutions and new ways of working, using 
evidence to inform change, and bringing progressive reform to meet the needs of 
residents. 
 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

Officers from the department noted a number of key initiatives that they had 
supported including: 

 Systemic reform of the High Needs Block in Children’s Services to reduce 
high levels of overspend. 

 The introduction of ‘The H&F Way’ a programme to drive cultural change, 
improve staff wellbeing, and increase performance. 

 A very positive Ofsted inspection of Children's Services. Information and 
analysis from Business Intelligence had informed good practice. 

 
The Chair asked for an example of how data was informing practice in Children’s 
Services. Matthew Sales (Assistant Director of Programmes and Assurance) noted 
that Business Intelligence had produced monthly performance reports that included 
key indicators in social care checking against statutory data. They were also 
generating management level information that allowed teams to drill-down into their 
data. 
 
The Chair questioned why this wasn’t being done previously. Matthew Sales 
explained that Business Intelligence was a new sovereign service and the new 
approached they were taking (using a ‘data warehouse’) gave officers greater insight 
into their services. Lisa Redfern also noted that they had also developed a state-of-
the-art business intelligence tool for Adult Social Care that had been vital to service 
improvement work. 
 
Matthew Sales added that the Business Intelligence team were responsible for 34 
statutory data returns across a wide range of Council areas. They were also working 
on a number of in-year savings products like council tax single person discount fraud 
system which had generated £133k for the organisation. 
 
Councillor Dominic Stanton asked for more information on how the council tax fraud 
system worked. Matthew Sales said using the ‘data warehouse’ model meant data 
from lots of different sources could be easily cross checked. 
 
Andre Mark (Interim Finance Business Partner) gave an overview of the Public 
Services Reform budget and noted the following points: 

 The department had a budget of just under £5m, split between staffing and 
the commissioning of services (e.g. printing rent letters, commissioning 
learning and development). 

 The department had made savings of around £250k on top of addressing in-
year pressures. The overspend had been £880k in the last revenue monitor. 

 In 2021 the department should achieve a balanced budget. 
 
Councillor Dominic Stanton asked where the income of £1.75m came from. 
Andre Mark said that was from re-charges to other departments. 
 
The Chair, noting the savings of £250k – 5 percent of a £5m budget, asked if the 
department was stopping doing certain things or doing the same things but cheaper. 
Andre Mark said it was a combination – when developing the new service plan, 
officers had reflected on what the department should be doing and what it shouldn’t 
– but areas of higher spend like People and Talent and the Programme Management 
Office recognised there were savings that could be made. 

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
Martin Calleja said that a number of inherent issues where the core budget hadn’t 
reflected the spend had been resolved. There were historical gaps in areas like 
Communication, Co-production etc. He added that the department had also started 
planning for savings over two years. People and Talent had put forward savings of 
£1.7m over the next two years. 
 
The Chair asked if Research and Innovation was continuing. Officers noted that area 
was principally Business Intelligence. Lisa Redfern added that the department had 
reduced the number of Assistant Director posts by three. 
 
The Chair asked if the department was confident it could deliver the same level of 
service with fewer senior / experienced people. Dawn Aunger (Assistant Director of 
People and Talent) said People and Talent was reducing headcount from 55 to 30 
and therefore had to change their ways of working. The team had inherited a lot of 
transactional staff, despite already outsourcing many of those functions. The function 
would be placing more of a focus on self-service with a core specialist team in the 
centre. They were doing things more strategically – workforce planning, driving 
productivity, the people plan etc. 
 
Martin Calleja added that the team was also moving over two years to a unit cost on 
par with the average HR function in inner London. Officers were using the review 
experience as a benchmark for other back-office services. 
 
Councillor Christabel Cooper asked if transactional services for managers would still 
be in place – e.g. support when going through a disciplinary, employee relations, 
recruitment processes etc. Dawn Aunger said for the core HR fundamentals she 
expected the business to deliver themselves with the self-service tools on offer. The 
People and Talent team was creating self-service toolkits and putting clear guidance 
on the intranet – and there would be some transitional support. 
 
Councillor Cooper asked how officers were monitoring this to ensure the Council 
didn’t end up with greater costs through staff turnover, tribunals etc. 
Dawn Aunger said nothing came without risk but believed it was the right thing to do. 
She added that all of these changes were being done in consultation with senior 
managers. 
 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum asked if there were organisational charts to see who 
reported to who. Officers said there were and there was a ‘who’s who’ guide 
available on the Intranet. 
 
 

5. ZERO-BASED BUDGETING AND EFFICIENCY UPDATE REPORT  
 
Martin Calleja (Assistant Director of Efficiency and Zero-Based Budgeting) presented 
the report that gave an overview of the Zero-Based Budgeting Programme, 
established in April 2019. The business case for the programme was based on the 
projected scale of further savings required over the next four-year medium term 
(£50m between 2020-24) and the need to improve the capability and capacity of the 
Council to achieve this. 

Page 8



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
Martin Calleja explained that achieving savings was not just a technical exercise but 
it was also about getting people to sign up and engage with change. A core principle 
of the programme was to work with teams collaboratively, not an imposed top-down 
review process. £5.19m of detailed viable plans have signed off by SLT - over the 
coming 3 years. This represented a £10 return for every £1 spent on the programme. 
 
Half of the Council’s services have used the zero-based budgeting process so far 
and the team will continue to promote and encourage services to use it going 
forward. Officers were also working with heads of finance and using them to promote 
the programme to their management teams. The programme was still not fully 
established but has made significant headway and on balance people feel positive 
about it. 
 
The Chair asked about the timeline for the £8.6m of pipeline savings. Martin Calleja 
said the pipeline represented modelled opportunity that required more detailed 
planning work and approvals from senior decision makers. For example – one of the 
proposals was to reduce management costs but the organisation had not set out 
how to do that yet. The programme would be developing a corporate strategy, 
priorities, and pipeline. Then there would be a managed closure of the programme 
by the end of the financial year next year. At that point all services will have been 
reviewed and work will move to delivery of the ‘big ticket’ savings. 
 
The Chair, noting the £10 return to £1 spent on the programme, asked if there was a 
limit to these marginal benefits – should the Council be spending more to realise 
even greater savings? Martin Calleja said the Council had scaled the programme 
around balancing the budget. He felt it was the right approach to have a small, 
focused team that worked with departments. Previous approaches used larger 
central teams of consultants and agency workers that became disconnected from 
services. 
 
The Chair asked if the managed closure at the end of two years risked losing 
experience. Martin Calleja said the programme needed to ensure the Council had 
the capability to carry on with its work. It was felt that the best home for reviews 
going forward is in the Business Intelligence team. 
 
The Chair, referring to 3.8 of the report, asked if the Council had considered selling 
this service to other councils. Officers noted that councils don't trade well as sector 
but there were potential opportunities for trading certain functions. 
 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum asked what period the 10:1 return on investment was 
calculated over. Martin Calleja said it was modelled over the medium term (4 years) 
but was likely to be delivered in one or two years. 
 
Councillor Qayyum asked what the biggest challenges were for the programme. 
Martin Calleja felt the cultural challenge was the most significant. The Council had 
already delivered a lot of savings but it could still be threatening for departments. 
There had been some challenging discussions with senior managers, and some 
services were nervous to commit to savings figures, but everyone recognised the 
scale and seriousness of the financial challenge. 

Page 9



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 
Councillor Qayyum asked if the Council was looking at revenue generation as well 
as savings. Martin Calleja said new commercial opportunities were being considered 
– the team was working with finance on all income and debt lines to look at the 
holistic picture. 
 
Councillor Christabel Cooper wanted to ensure there wasn’t under-investment in the 
Business Intelligence team, given the need for more and more analytics going 
forward. She noted that their work to support other areas of the Council was properly 
attributed – for example, the single person discount fraud income would show on 
another department’s balance sheet. Lisa Redfern agreed and said that getting the 
right model and corporate buy-in for the Business Intelligence team was crucial and 
officers were focussed on that now. 
 
The Chair asked for more information about the zero-based budgeting contract 
review panel. Martin Calleja said the team wanted to test how lead officers were 
managing contract costs. They looked at seven contracts, including CCTV, printing, 
and grounds maintenance. Each service was challenged to find opportunities to cut 
costs. The team found that services had a really good grip on the contracts and good 
ideas to reduce their costs - but there was limited drive to implement in the short 
term. Plans tended to revolve around major recommissions. Some services felt they 
needed sponsorship or some invest to save money. There were reports available on 
each of the seven contracts. 
 
 

6. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
The next meeting was scheduled for 23 March 2020. 
 
 
 
 

 
Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 8.32 pm 

 
 
Chair   

 
 
Contact officer: David Abbott 

Scrutiny Manager 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 07776 672877 
 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

Page 10



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to: Public Services Reform Policy & Accountability Committee 
 
Date: 30/02/2020 
 
Subject: Co-production Update Report 
 
Report of: Kevin Caulfield/Tara Flood, Strategic Leads for Co-production 
 

 
Summary 
 
This report sets out the progress being made regarding the implementation of Co-
Production across the Council following the recommendations from the Disabled 
People’s Commission report.   
 
Real progress is being made across the Council in terms of creating the framework 
for designing policies and services in co-production with Disabled residents. 

This includes changes to the Blue Badge Parking scheme, the adoption of an 
Independent Living vision for social care and the plan for a resident led 
implementation group for the Council’s Resident Access Programme and for the 
Disabled People’s Housing Strategy. 

The Strategic Leads for co-production (job share) have now been in post for 10 
months and change is underway: The work is ground-breaking compared to other 
Local Authorities’ approach to working with Disabled residents and co-production 
and is a shining light to Disabled People’s Organisations (DPOs) around the country.  
 
The work is overseen by HF Co production implementation group (HFCIG) made up 
of Disabled residents, Councillors and two strategic directors.   
 
We also highlight some of the barriers to progressing co-production and areas of 
work in development, including our plan to explore how we could generate income 
from the Council’s commitment to co-production.  
 
Recommendation 
 
That the Committee notes the progress made in the delivery of the co- production 
work following the Disabled People’s Commission’s report and its intentions to 
implement a delivery plan to realise the 8 report recommendations. 
 
Wards Affected: ALL 
 
 

 
  

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



H&F Priorities 
 
Please state how the subject of the report relates to our priorities – delete those 
priorities which are not appropriate  
 

Our Priorities Summary of how this report aligns to the 
H&F Priorities  

 Building shared prosperity Co-production fosters a shared vision for 
H&F that is co-created and owned by our 
residents.  
 

 Creating a compassionate 
council 

Co-production enables the Council to be 
compassionate by valuing the voices of all 
residents, but particularly those residents 
who experience barriers to community 
inclusion. 

 Doing things with local 
residents, not to them 

Co-production with residents is the 
mechanism to deliver this priority. Co-
production is about real partnership working 
with residents from the start to the 
conclusion of a policy or service redesign 
process. 

 Being ruthlessly financially 
efficient 

Co-production has the potential to enable 
the Council to deliver the services that 
residents want and need, thereby ensuring 
more cost effective use of resources. By 
getting investment and service provision 
right first time, it prevents the need for 
expensive adaptations in the future.  

 Taking pride in H&F The Council’s commitment to co-producing 
policies and services with Disabled 
residents is ground-breaking as H&F is the 
first to resource it and embed it in the 
Business Planning process. This is 
something the Council and our residents 
can be proud of. 

 
Contact Officer(s): 
 
Name: Tara Flood/Kevin Caulfield 
Position: Strategic Lead: Co-production (job share) 
Telephone: 07776672367 / 07776672830 
Email: kevin.caulfield@lbhf.gov.uk  

Tara.flood@lbhf.gov.uk  
 
Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 
None. 
 
 

  

Page 12

mailto:kevin.caulfield@lbhf.gov.uk
mailto:Tara.flood@lbhf.gov.uk


1. Proposals and Detailed Analysis 
 
1.2 There is a clearer understanding now that co-production is part of a range of 

community activities with a focus on the ‘right type of engagement with the 
right people, at the right time’ – 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.3 The Disabled People’s Commission page has been replaced and went live on 
the Council’s website in January 2020 – www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-
democracy/co-production. This will be a focal point for the work, the story so 
far and links to co-production opportunities available to residents, staff and the 
wider community.  It will provide a space for information sharing, resources 
and encouraging and promoting opportunities for everyone to get involved. 
The page has a new Council co-production email address and contact details.  

 
1.4 The Strategic Leads met with the Finance Board on the 24/10/19 and we have 

secured broad agreement to introduce for the 20/21 Council budget a cost 
code heading for co–production activities.  Finance Leads have set aside 
£40,000 for co-production activities across the Council in 2020/21. We now to 
create a process to enable council offices to access the monies.  This is in line 
with recommendation six of the DPC report.    

 
1.5 We are working with People and Talent to follow up on recent Disability 

Equality Training (DET) for over 250 front line social care staff (adults and 
children) as well as senior management including the Senior Leadership 
Team. This is likely to mean the development of an action plan that turns the 
learning from the DET into practice transformation. Focus for discussion is to 
now find ways to develop co- production / DET/ Independent Living training for 
staff across the Council.  

 
1.6 A final draft of a Disabled Peoples Housing Strategy has now been signed off. 

It was presented to the Accessible Housing Board in February 2020. A draft 
Terms of Reference has been drawn up with support from the Strategic Leads 
and the group should start its work in May 2020 if resident recruitment is 
successful.   

 
1.7 In October 2019 the Strategic Leadership Team (SLT) gave its backing to a 

new vision position for Independent Living. The position statement has also 
been signed off by Cllr Coleman. 

 
1.8 Independent living, as defined by Disabled people themselves, means 

Disabled people living in the community with the same choices, control and 

Information Consultation Engagement Co-design 
Co-

production 

Page 13

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy/co-production
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy/co-production


freedom as any other citizen. Independent Living is not just about ‘social care’ 
and it does not mean Disabled People1 doing everything for themselves. The 
same principles extend to people who have long term health conditions and 
people of all ages, including children and young people as well as older 
people.  

 
1.9 The adoption and implementation of the vision encourages joint working and 

will make us the first local authority to move towards Independent Living as 
defined by disabled people and away from the traditional model of providing 
‘social care’ – another ground breaking first.  For Disabled residents this will 
mean more choice and control over the support they receive in the community 
– who provides that support, as well as when and how that support is 
provided. 

 
1.10 Co- production strategic leads ran a ‘lunch and learn’ session for staff in 

October and a communication plan is being developed to help raise the profile 
of the new vision and what it means in terms of current practice. 

 
1.11 Co–production Strategic Leads will start working with the Interim Assistant 

Director (Social Care), on a quality assurance framework, in early 2020, that 
will support the co-produced planning and commissioning of support and 
services. (DPC report recommendation no.5)  

 
1.12 A new community based Direct Payment Support Service has been 

contracted to Action on Disability with a ground-breaking service specification 
that reflects the Council’s commitment to the Social Model of Disability and 
Co-Production. The Service specification was developed with co-production 
strategic leads. The new service will be overseen by a steering group of direct 
payment users and Commissioning / Council staff.  

 
1.13 The Strategic Leads are also supporting the Resident Access Programme 

(RAP) to embed co-production with residents. The RAP is seeking to make 
more of the services we provide accessible on-line, bring together telephone 
and face to face services so that they are more efficient with a focus, in phase 
1 on services that are used by lots of residents first such as Council Tax, 
parking and environmental services. An open call to join the RAP Co-
production Implementation group (RACIG) was circulated via the Council’s 
social media channels in late November, interviews with residents to take 
place in early March with the first meeting of the RACIG planned for the end of 
March. Cllr Fennimore has agreed to support the work of the RACIG and 
funding has been identified by PSR.  

                                            
1 We use the term Disabled people in this report to include all Disabled people with physical, 
cognitive, and sensory barriers, people with learning difficulties; Deaf people, deafened, hard of 
hearing people, mental health system users, and survivors, neuro-diverse people such as those with 
Autism, Dyspraxia, Attention Deficit Disorder (ADHD), Asperger Syndrome and Dyslexia, people with 
long term health conditions and people who self-identify. We mean Disabled people of all ages that 
experience barriers including Disabled children & young people with Special Educational Needs 
labels. https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy/resident-led-commissions/disabled-people-s-
commission/nothing-about-disabled-people-without-disabled-people 

Page 14

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy/resident-led-commissions/disabled-people-s-commission/nothing-about-disabled-people-without-disabled-people
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy/resident-led-commissions/disabled-people-s-commission/nothing-about-disabled-people-without-disabled-people


 
1.14 Co-production remains at the heart of the Civic Campus development (King St 

West Development).  A new resident has joined the Disabled residents’ team 
(DRT) with experience of neuro diverse barriers, which are often ignored in 
planning and design projects.  

 
1.15 The DRT agreed in September 2019 that the Borough’s cycling initiatives can 

be part of their remit to help ensure co-production. Cycling Leads at the 
Council will meet with the DRT in early 2020 to develop a co-production action 
plan. 

 
1.16 Co-production strategic leads have written a business case and secured 

ongoing funding and support from the Strategic Director for the Economy, 
which will see the Council taking a more strategic approach to the Disability 
Forum Planning Group2 (DFPG). This will increase the capacity of disabled 
residents to advise on the levels of Inclusive design in a larger number of 
planning applications.   

 
1.17 Very early work has started to support the Council’s Inclusive Employment 

offer (previously known as Supported Employment) to be co-produced. Two 
new co-production assistants’ posts have been created which will be filled by 
two of the new ‘inclusive’ apprentices – we will be supporting these roles to 
develop a strategy to co-produce with disabled children & young people. 

 
1.18 Independent Evaluation of Co-production - following on from Imperial College 

London presentation at the HFCIG in January focussed on how they could 
work with us to develop an accessible evaluation framework, we are setting 
up meeting with Inclusion London to define a process that includes Disabled 
residents as researchers. This is in line with recommendation eight of the 
Commission’s report. 

 
 
2. Co-Production – ongoing barriers to progress  
 

2.1 Over the last seven months there is no doubt that interest in the Council’s 
commitment to co-producing services and policy with Disabled residents has 
increased, however there are aspects of Council culture and practice that 
could slow progress towards embedding co-production. These include: 

2.1.1 Focus on process rather than outcomes for residents. 

2.1.2 Service contract re-commissioning – more forward planning needed 
as currently conversations about reaching out to residents when it is 
too late to make a real difference.   

                                            
2 The DFPG is a group of disabled residents with lived experience of the barriers Disabled people face when 

using housing, public buildings and public open space.  The group give advice to the Council’s Planning 
Department on planning applications for new buildings. It is the Planning and Development Control 
Committee or council officers who decide on planning applications.  

 
 

Page 15



2.1.3 Low levels of strategic engagement with residents and where there is 
engagement it is inconsistent across departments.  

2.1.4 Are we recruiting the right people/ consultants who see co-production 
as part of their remit/skillset? 

2.2 Our future planning is therefore focused on addressing these barriers both by 
working on new co-production activities and influencing Council-wide 
initiatives such as the Resident Access Programme and the H&F Way. 

 
3. Looking ahead  
 
3.1 The work streams outlined above are all still in progress so the Strategic 

Leads will continue to support ongoing activities. 
 
3.2 We are keen to support the development of a Communities Strategy that 

reflects the range of ways the Council seeks to work with residents to include 
the Ward Action Groups, Resident-led Commissions, the various co-
production groups as well as the growing number of online engagement 
platforms, such as NextDoor and Commonplace.  

 
3.3 This strategy would recognise the work that other departments are doing in 

terms of engagement (e.g. the Resident Involvement Team, Regeneration and 
the adults and children’s commissioners) and develop better ways of working 
across the council, streamlining activities, cross-referencing and learning from 
each other, which will enable us to help realise the PSR ‘capability and culture 
change’ priority.  

 
3.4 We will prioritise new/revised policies and/or services that will have a big 

impact and/or high cost and reputational impact e.g. Resident Access 
Programme, Disabled Peoples Housing Strategy.   

 
3.5 We will create an intranet page for staff as well as two practical resources – a 

Co-production checklist for staff + guidance for using the checklist. To be 
completed by end of March 2020.   

 
3.6 We will setup and facilitate a Council wide network of co-production leads. 

This network of volunteers will ignite enthusiasm for co-production within 
departments and use the network to share progress and challenges. We have 
developed a person specification which has been signed off by the Strategic 
Leadership Team (SLT) and will now be advertised to staff with the first 
meeting planned for April 2020.    

 
3.7 We will work with the Council’s new Commercial Lead to explore opportunities 

to generate income from the Council’s pioneering work on co-production. 
 
 

Page 16



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to: Public Services Reform Policy & Accountability Committee 
 
Date: 23 March 2020 
 
Subject: H&F Way Progress Report 
 
Report of: Dawn Aunger, Assistant Director People and Talent 
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
This report provides information on ‘The H&F Way’, our internal culture change 
campaign where staff work together to shape how we do things around here to be at 
our best, by creating a movement for change by our staff for our staff. 
 
Recommendation 

 
That the Committee notes the progress made and plans for taking the H&F Way 
programme forward.  
 
Wards Affected: ALL 
 

 
H&F Priorities 
 
Please state how the subject of the report relates to our priorities. 
 

Our Priorities Summary of how this report aligns to the H&F 
Priorities  

 Creating a 
compassionate council 

The H&F Way seeks to improve workplace 
behaviours, develop a healthy workplace and an 
inclusive workplace.  It is a change programme 
based on doing things with our staff, not to them. 
 

 Taking pride in H&F The H&F Way’s purpose is to make positive 
changes to organisational culture that will in turn 
increase employee engagement, satisfaction and 
pride in working for LBHF. 
 

 
Contact Officer(s): 
 
Dawn Aunger Assistant Director, People and Talent 
Veronique Vermeer, H&F Way Programme Lead, People and Talent 
 
Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 
None. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The H&F Way is our internal culture change campaign where staff work 

together to shape how we do things around here to be at our best, by creating 
a movement for change by our staff for our staff. 

 
1.2 A positive organisational culture is vital for our continued success. We are one 

of the few authorities that have invested in the ‘Best Companies’ system for 
driving organisational development.  This has given us a very clear view on 
how we need to improve.  

 
Following drop-ins across 3 sites on 8 days in October 2019, generating over 
800 comments; 22 focus groups and a mini online survey, an independent 
report by The Campaign Company (Appendix 1) highlighted 5 key themes 
identified by our staff as being important to address across the workplace. The 
5 key themes set in the context of the H&F vision, values and people strategy 
are:   

 Behaviours that create great place to work are genuinely and 
consistently understood, lived and recognised 

 An inclusive workplace where everybody’s needs are recognised and 
respected and all have the same opportunities to be involved in decisions, 
progress in their careers, have access to tools to do the best job that they 
can 

 A Healthy workplace with environment conditions and practices that 
create a stress-free place which help people achieve a good work-life 
balance 

 Appraising performance where regular review meetings are meaningful 
& valued, simple & focus on recognising contributions 

 Reward and recognition of everyone’s contribution in a way which 
makes them feel valued and is seen as fair, transparent, flexible and 
consistent 

 
1.3. The H&F Way campaign is seeking to deliver on the following aims: 

 Highly engaged staff that express higher levels of satisfaction  
 Significant improvements with productivity, wellbeing, recruitment, 

retention and equality at work. 

 A greater understanding of our unique organisational character and 
identity – what makes us the best, what are our biggest challenges, 
how do we best tackle them and what makes us different and special 
 

1.4.  The sponsor for the H&F Way programme, Kim Smith, Chief Executive 
provides strategic leadership support for enabling success.  The H&F Way 
senior responsible officer, Dawn Aunger, Assistant Director People and 
Talent, is ultimately accountable for the H&F Way campaign meeting its 
objectives, delivering the projected outcomes and realising the required 
benefits. All culture change proposals will be reviewed at the H&F Way 
Programme Board and important decisions that will affect people, processes 
or systems will be made by SLT at the Major Programmes Board. 
 

Page 18



1.5.  The campaign will be delivered in house rather than through a consultancy 
contract.  

 
1.6.  People and Talent are funding a part time H&F Way programme manager 

post which has been created within existing budget limits as part of the 
service restructure in February 2020. Consequently, Veronique Vermeer has 
been appointed internally on a 12-month part time secondment as H&F Way 
programme lead.  The H&F Way culture change campaign has no end date 
as changing culture can take on average 5 years however the initial work 
across the 5 themes will be managed as 5 projects and is expected to 
complete by December 2020.  Priority themes will then be reviewed following 
a new staff survey exercise.  Groups to support all 5 themes are managed 
and run by volunteers within the council.   

 
1.7 This report provides an overview of progress made to date and priorities for 

the continuing programme.    
 
2. Progress to date  

 
2.1 The H&F Way builds on the delivery of tangible at work priorities through the 

2018 Best Companies staff survey, IBC, Techtonic and re-accommodation 
programmes.  

 
2.2.  Following a H&F Way launch workshop on 26 November 2019, 5 action 

groups, each with a group lead, have been established. Each group is aligned 
to one of the 5 themes and is responsible for implementing change. The 
groups are made up of 56 staff volunteers (target 75) of varying experiences 
and skills but with a similar passion to make a difference. Rather than setting 
roles by traditional grade and title hierarchy, people selected their roles within 
the groups according to their passion, self-assessment of their skills and 
qualities and understanding of others in the group.  

 
2.2 Wider group membership is being encouraged via World Class Managers 

(WCMs), Future Leaders, existing group volunteers and promotion at staff 
events such as the “Grow, Reward and Give Back” held in February.  
 

2.3 A “Let’s Talk Culture” workshop was held in January with the Leadership 
Forum (senior management group) to engage them and identify what changes 
they could own and lead through behavioural nudges, quick wins and short 
and medium-term change activity. Feedback on the H&F Way campaign itself 
and how to improve links with departmental priorities was sought from the 
Managers’ Forum (top 100) held in February. A key observation was how the 
H&F programme and the People Strategy align and relate.   
 

2.4. Regular workshops are run every 4-6 weeks for all H&F Way action groups to 
come together to share progress, achievements, advice and support. The 
third workshop is planned for February where emerging group action plans 
will be considered to take the H&F Way forward. The plans include:  
 consideration of benchmarks, best practice, appropriate external 

accreditations,  

Page 19



 review of internal processes, policies and systems,  
 links with existing programmes and boards such as the West King Street 

redevelopment and the Social Isolation and Loneliness Board 

 establishment of user groups and departmental champions. 
 taking initial ideas back to business to road test.    

 

2.5  Progress will be measured against the following 6 stages (see below). The 
process was drawn up in collaboration with the H&F Project Management 
Office. 

 
 

2.6  A H&F Way Programme Board comprising the Assistant Director People and 
Talent, H&F Way programme lead, and H&F Way action group leads has 
been established and will be responsible for governance and alignment.  The 
board will meet every month to set direction, manage cross cutting 
opportunities, discuss the viability of the work plan for each group and across 
all groups, decide what to stop, start or continue and put forward ideas and 
proposals to SLT. The first programme board is due to take place in March 
and will produce a summary of the status, findings, and recommendations. 

 
3. Priorities for the continuing campaign  
 
3.1 Further build capacity within the groups to increase staff involvement  
3.2 Identify cost & benefits and implementation plans  
3.3. Develop communication and staff engagement work to support the campaign   
3.4. Refine short, medium- and longer-term outcomes and success measures 

across all groups  
 

4. Developing a corporate strategy for delivering the full scale of benefits 
of the campaign  

Page 20



 
4.1 Our H&F 5 priorities are clearly defined. This is underpinned by the People 

Strategy.  The H&F Way is an internal culture change programme that will 
engage, enable and empower our staff to drive meaningful change, to make a 
difference and create the best Council to work for.  The detailed H&F Way 
programme plan to support the H&F Way is in development. 

 
5. Return on investment  
 
5.1 Independent monitoring and evaluation through informal feedback, pulse and 

staff surveys plus review of recruitment and retention rates and workforce 
analysis will inform focus and pace of change.  

 
5.2 The H&F Way is seeking to deliver on the following aims and measures will 

be agreed: 

 High staff engagement >70% 

 Improvements to productivity, wellbeing, recruitment, retention and 
equality at work  

 A greater understanding of our unique organisational character and 
identity – what makes us the best, what are our biggest challenges, 
how do we best tackle them and what makes us different and special 

 
 
List of appendices 
Appendix 1 – Analysis of the H&F Way Staff Engagement report, produced by The 
Campaign Company, October 2019 

Page 21



  

 

Page 22



  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

Page 23



 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/260_59_hf_vision_a4_booklet_rev8.pdf
https://officesharedservice.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet/hf-hr/Pages/People-strategy.aspx


 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 26

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/260_59_hf_vision_a4_booklet_rev8.pdf
https://officesharedservice.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet/hf-hr/Pages/People-strategy.aspx


• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 27



 

“Behaviours are the root cause of everything – 

we need to get these right if we really want to 

be the best.” 

 

Page 28



Trust 

• 

• 

• 

• 

  

“Trust me to do my job in the way that I think will work – that’s what I was 

employed to do.” 

“Trusting my judgement and involving me in decisions about my work means 

we can work collaboratively and focus on getting the best results.” 

“It works both ways . . . if a manager is checking up on you when you’re 

working from home, you feel they don’t trust you . . . but you end up not 

trusting them either. It’s not healthy and it’s not productive” 

 

Page 29



Respect 

 

Open, honest and responsible 

“We should respect hot-desking. No-one should ever be told that they’re not 

allowed to sit somewhere.”  

“We share desks, meeting rooms, kitchen areas and other spaces – it’s just basic 

manners and respect for those who use them after us to keep it neat and tidy.”  

 

“Everyone should be respected, no matter what 

their role or status. 

Page 30



“We know that the Council has got to be “ruthlessly financially efficient”. So, 

let’s have honest conversations about what this means in practice. We can 

be part of the solution not the problem.” 

“ We need more open adult – adult conversations. Sometimes, we need to 

understand the reasoning behind decisions and not just be told the decision. 

We’re more likely to respect both the decision and the decision-maker then.” 

“If we were more open, people would have to take more responsibility and 

there would be less blame and shame thrown around.”   

“Honesty is the best policy AND the best way to behave.” 

 

“Actions to close the ‘say-do’ gap should start at the top of the organization – 

role modelling good behaviour would be a great place to start.”  

“Kim is really accessible. She walks around everywhere, takes time to chat to 

people and knows all of our names.” 

“It would be good if all the Directors fronted cross-organisational stuff –I don’t 

think I know anyone other than mine.”  

Page 31



 

• 

• 

• 

“The appraisal process would be a valuable use of everyone’s time if we 

had meaningful targets; regular feedback; more conversations and less 

paperwork; there was a focus on people’s development as well as 

performance; and if it was used as an opportunity to recognize and 

thank us for what we’ve done.” 

“Performance isn’t something that should be reviewed and considered once a 

year.” 

“It’s a tick-box exercise.” 

“It’s a bit of a joke. I haven’t had one in years. And I recently found out that 

Directors received a bonus based on the fact that all appraisals within their teams 

had been done.” 

“There’s got to be a process that allows us to reflect, monitor and improve. Good 

managers these types of conversations at monthly one-to-ones and not just at the 

appraisal meetings.”  

 

Page 32



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Page 33



• 

• 

 

Page 34



 

“Tell me when I’m doing well not just when I’m not.” 

“Say ‘thank you’ more often and reward me by showing trust.” 

“Let’s have fair and consistently applied processes (public and private) that 

don’t just recognise ‘top’ but also recognises and rewards ‘most improved’ 

and potential talent.” 

“Rewards don’t just have to be about money – although it would be nice if 

it were! But we know that the impact of austerity is still here so being able 

to work flexibly or having a Director say “thank you” for my work is 

sometimes just as valuable.”  

 

“We’ve recently introduced individual and team targets and I’ve used some 

money in my budget to reward these. I give a voucher to the top individual 

and a voucher for the top team to spend on a team lunch.  It’s acted as a real 

incentive and we’ve seen improvements in overall performance and targets 

as a result.” 

“We don’t even get a ‘thank you’ in our team.” 

 

Page 35



“We should embed a thank you culture across the organisation. Sometimes a 

gesture like that is all that’s needed to motivate someone or make someone’s 

day.” 

“Our Star awards are great but it’s too expensive and feels a bit exclusive 

as a result. I was so disappointed not to be part of my team’s celebrations 

but I know they had to keep an eye on costs.” 

“The system for nominating is unfair – I could nominate you and you could 

nominate me and that’s it , we’ve won.” 

“You see people being recognised and rewarded for doing their job rather 

than anything that appears to be over and above. There needs to be more 

transparency about how the awards are decided.” 

“It might be good to have awards that recognise achievement outside 

work – for example, in the community, for charities or local schools.” 

 

Page 36



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 37



 

• 

• 

• 

“A healthy workplace is where the physical, social and cultural environment 

is cared for.” 

“The physical environment has an impact on our well-being: there should be 

common standards across each site to make sure we have the basics – a 

safe functioning place to work.” 

“A collaborative and supportive workplace where we look out for each 

other.” 

“We need to commit to and respect work-life balance. It will make us more 

productive in the end.” 

 

“Being able to work from home has really helped my stress levels – not just because 

it means I’m not stressed out by the time I get here but because I can work on 

reports in peace and quiet. There is no quiet space here [145 King Street].” 

“It’s really important that each site respects the staff kitchen / social areas. Having 

meetings in the Main Hall [Shortlands] during lunch-time means we don’t get the 

opportunity to have a break with our colleagues.”  

 

Page 38



“Managers are not applying the flexible working policies consistently – some 

managers approve all requests, others approve none. Some “check up” several 

times a day when their staff are working from home: others trust them to get 

on with it.” 

 

• Showing 

• Teams 

• Respect 

• Encourages 

• Staff 

• Success  

“We should be encouraging a collaborative and supportive workplace 

culture where people look out for each other.”  

“We should provide more “stress-management” solutions at work 

including yoga, Pilates, desk massages; discounted membership to the 

Virgin Active gym at Shortlands. etc.” 

“Let’s mean what we say when talking about work-life balance – let’s have 

a cut-off point for responding to out of hours e-mails for example.” 

“We need to do more fun stuff and encourage people to get to know each 

other better. We missed out on a ’social’ event when we moved to our new 

spaces earlier this year. Maybe we could make up for it at Xmas.” 

 

 

Page 39



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Page 40



 

• 

• 

• 

• 

“An inclusive workplace is one where you are involved in the decisions that 

affect you and where your opinion counts.” 

“It’s about having the same access to opportunities to help you progress as 

your colleagues.” 

“It’s when you have access to the tools that can help you do your job.” 

“It’s a place where everybody’s needs are recognised and respected – and 

that can be cultural, intellectual, physical, mental and even self-esteem.” 

“It’s about knowing what’s going not just to be nosey but because it 

means we can support each other better.” 

  

 

Page 41



• 

• 

“We need to think and work like an H&F family. There needs to be more 

opportunities for us to get to know each other and respect each other.” 

“More flexible-working practices will help us get a better work-life balance. 

We’d be more productive as a result and probably nicer people to work with. It 

means I might also get to play sometimes with my colleagues too.” 

“There needs to diversity/equalities training for all - starting with managers 

and decision makers.” 

“Raising awareness of bias (both conscious and unconscious) will lead to more 

inclusive thinking, conversations and behaviours.” 

 “Let’s look at nurturing and promoting our own people rather than always 

looking at consultants / agency staff as short-term fixes. It will be cheaper in 

the long-run.” 

“Stuff like this is good . . . inviting us to have our say on how things are done 

around here. This is the H&F Way of doing things – asking, listening, taking 

action.” 

 

Page 42



• 

 

Page 43



 

• 

• 

• 

“I feel I’ve had conversations like this before and nothing’s happened. I can see that 

Kim is genuine about this and I’ll support her if she wants changes to be made. I just 

hope that we stick to it this time.” 

 

“Closing the ‘say do’ gap is going to be a priority if we’re going to get people believing 

we’re serious about change.” 

Page 44



 

 

 

 

 

Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



 

Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



 

Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



 

Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



 

Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



 

Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Co-production update report
	5 H&F Way progress report
	Appendix 1 – Analysis of the H&F Way Staff Engagement


